
The Quadraneighbourhoodwe know today was created through subdivisionof the early
farmsthat hadbeencut from denseforest.

During the early period of Europeansettlement, the CedarHill area (includingwhat is now
GordonHead,UVicCampus,Lansdowne,Mount Tolmie,CedarHill GolfCourse,and the slope
borderedby CookStreet,QuadraStreet,andMcKenzieAvenue)wascalledCedarPlainsafter
the tall treesthat coveredthe area.

Prior to Europeansettlement, this fertile region was used by the [₳ƪ ₳ƺ₳ƴand ²{#b90
peoplesfor hunting and food gathering. Portionsof CedarHill Road,CedarHill CrossRoad,
andSaanichRoadwerelikelybuilt overexistingFirstNationstrails.

Ellen Elizabeth and Alice Mary Girling 
sitting on the shores of Swan Lake, ca. 1912 (2008-025-895)
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The District of Saanich lies within the
traditional territories of the [₳ƪ ₳ƺ₳ƴand
{9b0h¥9bspeakingpeoples. Evidenceof
First Nations settlement in the area now
calledSaanichdatesbackover 4,000 years.
The[₳ƪ ₳ƺ₳ƴpeoplesare madeup of two
nations, the Songhees and Esquimalt
Nations. The²{#b90peoplesare madeup
of five nations: ²Whḿ9ḿt(Tsartlip),
.hṢ909b(Pauquachin), {Ṁ#¦¢²(Tsawout),
²{LṤ9a(Tseycum) anda#[9·9ḿ(Malahat)
Nations. Eachnation had its own territory
and travelled freely over the land, hunting,
fishing, and gathering resources. The
[₳ƪ ₳ƺ₳ƴand ²{#b90peoples have
historical connectionswith the land which
continueto this day.

1845
The first Europeansettlement in Saanichwas North
Dairy Farm, one of the three original IǳŘǎƻƴΩǎBay
Companyfarms, establishedin approximately1845 to
supplyFort Victoriawith farm produce. CedarHill Cross
Road, which began as a trail used by First Nations,
headed inland from Cadboro Bay and was used by
Europeansettlers to connectUplandsFarmat Cadboro
Baywith North DairyFarm.

One of the oldest survivingstructures in Saanichis a
small two-story house at 3926 Quadra Street built
around 1875. In 1889, North Dairy Farm was
subdivided,and this houseand 460 acreswere sold to
W. Brownand the PugetSoundAgriculturalCompany(a
subsidiaryof IǳŘǎƻƴΩǎBay Company). Between 1891
and 1946, the land was further subdivided several
times.

In 1918, a 10 year leasewasgrantedto Saanichby the
district managerof the IǳŘǎƻƴΩǎBayCompanyto use
lot 37 of North Dairy Farm (near the corner of
BlenkinsopRoadandPersimmonDrive)for a quarry.

Above : Old HBC barn on Borden property 
(present site of Reynolds School), 1910s (1980-008-005)

Below: 3926 Quadra Street, 1970s (1980-011-005)

View of Swan Lake, after 1912 (2008-025-404)



1850-1854
Between1850and 1854, JamesDouglas,ChiefFactorand later Governorof the HudsonBayCompanycolony
on VancouverIsland,signedtreatieswith 14 Indigenousgroups. Thesedocumentsare often referred to asthe
άCƻǊǘVictoria¢ǊŜŀǘƛŜǎέor theά5ƻǳƎƭŀǎ¢ǊŜŀǘƛŜǎέ. JamesDouglasdid not explicitlyusethe word treaty in these
agreements,but a SupremeCourtdecisionruled that theseagreementswere and remainvalid treaties since
Douglas,who was acting as an agent of the Crown at the time, arranged them with the Indigenous
peoples. First Nations assert that their ancestorsunderstood these as peace treaties or agreementsof
cohabitation of the land. The British, however, interpreted the treaties as purchase agreements that
surrenderedlandsnearHudsonBayCompanypostsin exchangefor reservelands,the continuedright to hunt
andfish,anda one-time payment.

Thetreaty that coversthe area today known as Quadrawassignedby 20 membersof the Kosampsontribe
whoseprimarysettlementwascenteredaroundCraigflowerParkon AdmiralsRoad. Thetreaty referred to the
landάƻƴthe eastsideof the arm, enclosingChristmasHill and Lakeand the landswest of thoseobjects.έThe
conditionsof the treaty stateάǘƘŀǘour villagesitesand enclosedfieldsare to be kept for our own use,for the
useof our children,and for thosewho mayfollow after usand the land shallbe properlysurveyedhereafter. It
is understood,however,that the land itself, with thesesmall exceptions,becomesthe entire property of the
white peopleforever; it isalsounderstoodthat we areat liberty to hunt overthe unoccupiedlands,andto carry
on our fisheriesas formerly. We havereceived,as payment,fifty-two poundsten shillingssterling.έ(Full text
availableonlinethroughIndigenousServicesCanada)
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1850s
AnearlyEuropeanland-owner in the QuadraareawasJohnWork.
In addition to his properties in GordonHead,he owned sections
42 and43; this wasthe land to the eastof WilliamFraser¢ƻƭƳƛŜΩǎ
CloverdaleFarm, where Cedar Hill Park is now located. Work
calledhisfarm HillsideFarm.

Above: View of Swan Lake from Christmas Hill, ca. 1920 (2008-025-665)
Below: View across Swan Lake, ca. 1920 (2008-0250176)

1852
SwanLakeis likelyeither namedafter
geologist John Gilchrest Swan or
JamesSwan,a self-taught ethnologist
who visitedVictoriafrom Washington
in 1852.

The lake was formed over 12,000
years ago when the last glacier
receded. Prior to and well into the
earlyyearsof Europeansettlementin
the area, Swan Lake and its
surroundingfertile landwere usedby
W{#b90and [₳ƪ ₳ƺ₳ƴpeoples for
fishingandhunting.

The Daily British Colonist, 11 February 1862

Overa hundredspeciesof plantswere knownand
used for food, medicines,and weaving. The lake
and streamsprovideda variety of fish, caughtby
trolling, jigging, spearing, and wooden basket
traps. All varietiesof largebirds were hunted and
their eggscollected. Deer were plentiful around
the lake area, providing an important source of
food andclothing.


